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Incident Report 11/30/2023

Incident #: 23A80-1185-OF
Call #: 23-118767

Date/Time Reported: 10/25/2023 1919
Report DatafTime' 10/30/2023 1009
Occurred Between; 10/25/2023 1911-10/25/2023 2000
Status: No Crime Involved

Reporting Officer: Sergeant Maurice Drouin
Assisting Officer: Corporal Darian Nadeau
Approving Officer: Major Mark Cornelio

Signature:

Signature:

Military Bctiy

COMPLEXION: NOT AVAIL.
PLACE OF BIRTH: NOT AVAIL,
ETHNICITY: NCOT HISPANIC

DOB:
LICENSE NUMBER:

[CONTACT INFORMATION]

Home Phone {Primary)
CaliBack Numbex {Primary)

[APPEARANCE]

GLASSES WORN: YES

~ EVENTS(S)

LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: ANDRCOSCOGGIN ALL OTHER

SCHMENGEES
545 LINCOLN ST
ANDROSCOGGIN 50 ME 04210

1  Assisgt Other Agency/ACTIVE SHOOTER
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Incident #: 23AS0-1185-OF
Call #: 23-118767

- PERSONGS) o = PERSON TYPE  SEX RACE  ACE SN
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CONTACT INFORMATION:
Work Phone (Primary)
CallBack Number (Primary)

OTHER - b I

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Home Phore {Primary)
CallBack Number {Primary)

“ADDITIONAL ASSISTING OFZICERS

Detective Nathan McNally

Attachments for 23AS0-1185-OF

Description Type

7230 assist to Schemengees call leg 241
Attachment#: A435C838B4EA6413EBDBOESC2536A9157 |

ASO assist to Sparetime call log PDP
Attachment$; EEE0G52FOEGEAFAABFIEEE3332A43D6F
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On 10/25/2023, at approximately 1857 hours, I Deputy Greg Pealatere was on duty in the Poland area and
requested to respond to 24 Mollison Way in Lewiston for a report of a active shooter at the location. ASO
dispatch advised the business is Spare Time bowling facility and serious injuries have been reported. 1
responded to the location with emergency lights and siren and upon arrival I parked my patrol vehicle in front of
fire and ambulance vehicle's, I exited my patrol vehicle with my patrol rifle and prepared to advance towards
the facility.

At approximately 1919 hours, I overheard on ASO radio frequency that a second
active shoater incident was now taking place at 545 Lincoln Street in Lewiston and that all ASO patrol units
need to respond to that location. The Lincoln Street location was identified as Schmengees Bar and Grill

Restaurant.

I responded to the Lincoln Street location and stopped on the roadway just east of the Restaurant. Various fire
and police vehicles ahd already arrived prior to my arrival. | exited my patrol vehicle and met up with Deputy
Joseph Tripp of which we tactically worked are way along a steel fence line towards the parking lot of
Schmengees Restaurant.

At this point various Maine State Police and Lewiston
Police Officer were on scen I
maintained perking lot security at this time.

At approximately 2012 hours, ASO dispatch advised they have another report of an active shooter at the
Walmart Distribution Center in Lewiston which is approximately | mile east of Schmengees of Lincoln Street.
MSP units at Schmengees advised if anyone has a patrol vehicle to leave and respond to the Walmart
Distribution Center.

T ran back to my patrol vehicle and a unknown Lewiston PD officer wearing range clothing jumped in my patrol
vehicle with myself and we responded to the location. ASO dispatch advised to enter through the truck loading

area as well,

Upon arrival, large box trailers blocked some of the entrance which kept responded units from driving all the
way up to the building. Upon exit of my patrol vehicle, ASO dispatch first advised a active shooter was inside
the structure, then updated with two subject outside were only brandishing a weapon and all the employees had
locked themselves into the dry storage area. '

Other responding unit made entry through the main entrance of the Walmart facility and were able to escort the
occupants out safely.

ASO patrol unit were advised by dispatch to respond back to Lewiston Police Department so assignments could
made. I responded back to LPD and was advised by ASO Major Mark Cornelio to patrol the area and remain
central until additional information develops.

After a period of time, ASO dispatch advised the shooting suspect is a Robert Card who is operating white 2013
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At approximately 2157 hours, ASO dispatch the suspect vehicle was located in Lisbon near a boat launch.
Multiple LEQC units responded to Lisbon and located the involved vehicle which was parked just off Route 196.
I responded to the Lisbon area from Center Street in Auburn and stopped on Route 196 to assist ASO Cpl.
Williams with traffic control.

After a short period of time, I cleared the area which ended my involvement. My Watch Guard video recording
was saved in the systemn under this report case number.
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On 10/25/2023 at approximately 1856 hours, I was investigating a crash in the area of 383 College Rd in
Greene. Detective Mejia was also on scene. We were conversing at my cruiser when we heard officers from the
Lewiston Police Department being dispatched to a report of a male actively shooting people inside the bowling
alley on Mollison Way in Lewiston.

I asked Sergeant Jon Guay via radio if he was aware of the incident, and he advised he was responding. Deputy
Devon Bohacik was on a traffic stop and had not heard the radio traffic. 1 advised him of the incident and both
he and Deputy Joseph Tripp advised they were responding. Dispatch provided us with a description of the
suspect which was a male with black hair carrying a rifle.

Deputy Tripp was the first member of the Sheriff’s Office to arrive on scene at Just-In-Time Recreation on
Mollison Way and reported the male suspect ran outside with a rifle. Deputy Tripp ptovided a description of a
white male with a beard wearing a black sweatshirt and carrying a rifle.

Detective Mejia and I responded to Mollison Way and arrived on scene at approximately 1903 hours. I acquired
my county issued patrol rifle from the trunk of my cruiser and made my way to a door at the back of the bowli

Detective Mejia and I then walked in between the machines and made our way up the bowling |

We were still working in the bowling alley when I heard Lewiston PD being dispatched to Schemengee’s in
Lewiston for a repott of an active shooter at approximately 1909 hours. Detective Mejia and I ran out the front
door and had to run around the building to get back to out cruisers. I acquired my spare rifle magazine from the
trunk of my cruiser then responded to Schemengee’s. Detective Mejia and I arrived at Schemengee’s at
approximately 1918 hours.

T acquired my medical bag from the trunk of my cruiser and entered the building through the front door, It was
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dark inside with the exception emergency lights on the walls. I searched for light switches and located a row of
them behind the bar, but discovered they were already turned on. It appeared the power to the building had been

shut off.

I then went outside and moved to the back of the parking lot to attempt to locate Deputy Tripp. Deputy Tripp
had previously reported someone was seen running through the woods behind the building towards the water

treatment plant.

then reported that the suspect may have crashed his vehicle near exit 80 on the Turnpike.
I began to respond to exit 80, but before [ arrived on scene it was determined the erash was not related.

The decision ‘was made to close down the area bars and restaurants to eliminate potential targets for the suspect.
I went back to Lewiston PD with other officers where were we going to be given assignments. While waiting for
assignments, Chief Deputy William Gagne provided me with a picture of the suspect from the bowling alley,
which matched the description previously provided via radio. Before receiving an assignment, a report of an
active shooter came in at Walmart Distribution Center on Alfred Plourde Parkway Lewiston.

1 responded to the distribution center with numerous other officers. We cleared the building and evacuated
employees. Through interviews with employees and review of security camera video, we determined the suspect
was never there. There was a suspicious vehicle and person at the distribution center, but it was not believed to

be the suspect.

The suspect was eventually identified as Robert Card R, 2nd the suspect’s vehicle was identified as a
213 S Ot N ! < i ot
after 2100 hours.

After leaving the distribution center I went to the Colisée in Lewiston to meet with numerous other law
enforcement officers from surrounding agencies and counties. While waiting for assignments, Lisbon PD
Jocated the suspect vehicle at the boat launch on Lisbon St in Lisbon. I responded to the area of the boat launch
where I observed a white vehicle parked in the parking lot by the Papermill Trail. I cleared from there a short
time later to assist Lisbon PD with looking for a suspicious person on Frost Hill Ave which is the road the boat
Jaunch is on. By the time I made it around to the other end of Frost Hill Ave it was determined the suspicious
person was not the suspect and was involved in an earlier complaint Lisbon PD had been dealing with.

I spent some time on the perimeter at the Ridge Rd end of Frost Hill Ave, then eventually relocated to the
intersection of Lisbon St and Village St in Lisbon where I diverted traffic with Deputy Bohacik until we were
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relieved by Corporal Randy Williams around 0600 hours,

[ have body wom camera video and cruiser camara video of my response to the events detailed above.
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On 10/25/23 1 was on duty as the Sheriff's Office Patrol Supervisor and was currently in the town of
Poland. I was scanning all the police radio frequencies in the county as part of a normal routine. Most of the
police agencies in Androscoggin County share the same records management system and likewise can see what
each officer is responding to at any given time. Listening to each other’s radio traffic is a common practice as
well,

At 6:56 p.m. | heard radio traffic from the Lewiston/Auburn Communications Center indicating multiple
callers were reporting shots fired at Just-In-Time Recreation (formerly and best known as Sparetime) located at
24 Mollison Way in Lewiston, Further radio traffic advised that there were multiple victims and that this was an
active shooter scenario.

Corporal Nadeau radioed me asking if I had heard the Lewiston Police’s dispatch traffic as he and
Detective Mejia were enroute. I advised Corporal Nadeau that | too was responding. Deputy Tripp radioed to us
that he was on Main St in Lewiston and responding with several Lewiston Police Units. Given the seriousness of
the incident, I requested that Deputy Pealetere as weli as the Mechanic Falls Police Units proceed to Sparetime
as well. Deputy Bohacik, who had previously been on an unrelated traffic stop, cleared that stop and headed
directly to Sparctime in addition.

At approximately 6:59 p.m. Deputy Tripp was first to arrive at Sparetime along with the Lewiston Police
Units he had been responding with. A description of the active shooter was given out over the radio as a male
with black hair and a hooded sweatshirt with what appeared to be a rifle.

Deputy Tripp entered the building and atternpted to radio to our responding units that the male had already
left and had run out the back towards the parking lot. His radio traffic was difficult to hear as he was
broadcasting from inside a large building.

At approximately 7:02 p.m. Deputy Tripp gave out the description of the shooter indicating he was a
| white male approximately six feet tall with a beard, wearing a black sweatshirt and glasses, and carrying an
“AR" (AR-15) that ran out the back.

At 7:08 p.m. I was driving on Court St in Auburn when I passed at least two Auburn Police cruisers, one
of which was stationary, that had not yet responded to the active shooter scene across the bridge in Lewiston for
reasons unknown. (APD would eventually respond to the second active shooter scene, but not until at least 7:17

p.m.)
Also at 7:08 p.m. Deputy Bohacik radioed to our dispatch that he had evacuated —
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I radioed to Deputy Bohacik if there was a known location on the
shooter. He responded in telling me that he didn't have a good location for him at that time.

At 7:10 the Lewiston Auburm Communications Center radioed to all units that they were taking multiple
calls for another active shooter at Schemengees located at 545 Lincoln St in Lewiston. 1 then radioed our
dispatch to divert all remaining County units to Schemengees to assist with that scene. At 7:13 p.m, ] arrived at
Schemengees. Androscoggin County Dispatch radioed me that description for the shooter was possibly male
with a black sweatshirt headed towards the water treatment plant. I was met and joined by other Lewiston Police
Officers including Officer’s Simmoneau, Zawistowski, and Caouette, who were in plain clothes and had just
responded from training at their firearms range on River Rd. when they heard the call.

At approximately 7:18 p.m. I spoke with an unknown male witness who told me that shooter leftina
white four door hatchback car, He couldn't tell me what type of car it was other than what he described. He said

that car drove off on Lincoln St, then on to South Ave, and towards Lisbon St. I notified dispatch as to the
description of the vehicle and last known location.

At 7:19 p.m., it was determined that there was active

.1
reques ispatch consult with Chief Deputy Gagne to do a mass callout for any available Deputies to respond
to Schemengess.

At 7:40 p.m. I coordinated with Lewiston Police Sergeant Joey Brown as well as Lieutenant Derrick St.
Laurent in shutting down the city’s bars and nightclubs. Therc was tremendous concern that another soft
location was going to get attacked as the shooter’s whereabouts were still unknown. This was the time that
information had surfaced from the Sparetime location that the shooter was armed with an AR10 which shoots
7.62x51mm ammo (commonly referred to as .308 ammunition). I then had all available Deputy Sheriffs at
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Schemengees regroup at the Lewiston Police Department for assignments in shutting down the city.

At 7:43 p.m. ] received a call from Deputy Marshall Ryan Guay of the U.S. Marshall Service based out of
Portland, ME. He had heard reports of an active shooter in Lewiston. I spoke with him, advised that there were
two locations with multiple fatalities and injuries. I requested he activate his team and assist in the manhunt.
That request was granted and soon U,S. Marshalls from all over the state and New England began arriving.

At 7:45 p.m. a vehicle crash was reported near the on ramp to the Turnpike off exit 80 in Lewiston. One
of the vehicles reported involved was a white hatch back sedan previously described as the shooter’s getaway
car. Nearly a dozen Sheriff, State Police, and Lewisten cruisers responded to the on ramp however it was
quickly determined that the car involved was not our suspect.

At 7:52 p.m, most of the available Sheriff units started arriving at the Lewiston Police Department for
orders and assignments. There were reports of a possible active shooter at Davinei's Restaurant on Mill Stin
Lewiston, but that was quickly debunked as a false report. I then had Deputy Rider, Deputy Philips, Deputy
Chaloux and Deputy Westleigh start visiting the local bars in Lewiston with instructions of them to shut down
and/or shelter in place.

At 7:53 p.am. I reccived a photograph of the suspect in the mass shootings at both Sparetime and
Schemengees. Officers inside Sparetime Recreation were able to review video footage and captured a still image
of the active shooter. That picture was widely distributed to arca law enforcement and ultimately to the public on
social media pages. A second photograph was also sent out portraying the car used in the escape. It was a white
Subaru with a different colored front bumper than the rear,

At approximately 8:12 p.m. reports started to come in of an active shooter at the Walmart Distribution
Center in Lewiston on Goddard Rd in Lewiston. Once again, all Sheriff Units were directed towards that
Jocation. We zrrived about three minutes later but saw no activity out-front or could hear anything inside. All the
doors were secured and there was no one to meet us at the front entrance. There was confusion at the
Distribution Center as we were hearing employees were taking shelter as there was a ssible active shooter

At approximately 8:20 p.m. entry was made into the facility. Detective Mejia, two Maine State Police Tac
Team Units ard I then started to clear the entire dry side of the facility as other officers began searching the
refrigerated side. The WalMart D.C. is a very large facility covering the equivalent of 8-10 football fields. While
searching Walmart D.C., we came across several employees who had hid themselves and were escorted to

safety.

The entire search of the Walmart Distribution Center took nearly an hour to complete. All employees were
found safe and unharmed. It was later determined that while a suspicious vehicle may have shown up outside the
distribution center, there was never an active shooter.

At 9:16 p.m. a mass text was sent out from the Androscoggin Communications Center which identified
Robert Ca.rd_as the potertial suspect in the mass shootings. It was said he was
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operating a—white 2013 Subaru Outback.

At 9:25 p.m. all Sheriff's units were assigned to assemble at the Colisee parking lot in Lewiston. This
would be the staging area for all incoming units to assist in the manhunt. Teams from Sheriff Offices, local
police departments, and federal agencies all gathered and began waiting for instructions and assignments,

At approximately 10:07 p.m. we began hearing reports that the car in question was located by Lishon

Police Units on Frost Hill Ave in Lisbon by the boat laun
Androscoggin River meet.

This would be the last time I had any formal communication or direct knowledge as to where
the investigation into Robert Card was headed.

Sometime after midnight on 10/26/23 the Lisbon Police Department started to get calls of suspicious
persons walking in the area or random gunshots heard. Sheriff units were dispatched to assist Lisbon in
investigating those calls which mostly determined to be unfounded. I assisted Lisbon PD with checking at least
two possible eddre d

and he was not found at either location.

At approximately 1:20 a.m. on 10/26/23 rumors began to circulate that a possible boat or jet ski may have
been used in Card's attempt to esca

Those searches didn't produce any results or

clues.

I was advised that at 2:00 a.m. a Chief's briefing would be taken place at the command post. Several
members of law enforcement on the bridge in Lisbon inquired about what was found in the car and that
information was never shared with us. For the remaining three hours of my shift, I canvassed the area by vehicle
looking for Card and worried that there would be another target the following day. At approximately 4:00 a.m.
information began to leak out that Card’s former employment was through Maine Recycling located at 61
Capital Ave in Lisbon, This location is less than a mile from where his vehicle was found at the boat launch. At
approximately 5:00 a.m. a representative from Maine Recycling atrived at the roadblock on Lisbon St at
Graziano Square where some of my deputies were stationed. This gentleman was allowed through as a v.i.p.

On 10/26/23 at approximately 12:00 p.m. I went back on duty and learned that more
teams were responding to Lewiston to assist in the search.
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At approximately 2:00 p.m. I learned that Deputy Matt Noyes had a wealth of information {o share
regarding Robert Card. Deputy Noyes had served with him in the Army and had taken him into protective
custody in New York as a commanding officer. Deputy Noyes had knowledge of Cards current and previous
employers (Maine Recycling in Lisbon) as well as friends and relatives, Deputy Noyes attempted to relay this
information in person at the command post the previous night but was rebuffed and not interview until after
Card's body was eventually found.

Sometime in the afternoon of 10/26/23
bolo was put out on area mobile data terminals to locate and stop him, He was
eventually found by Lewiston police on Unknown what his involvement was or who requested he’d

be located.
On-in Bowdoin was the

At approximately 5:00 p.m. I learned via Fox News that a residence
scene of a large police response and sounds of explosions.

At approximately 8:00 p.m. I was asked to call a Border Patrol Agent foras ecial request and was given a
phone number.

1 thanked them for their involvement.

Throughout the next ten hours Deputies responded to several calls of gunshots and suspicious incident
teports in Dutham and surrounding communities as residents sheltered in place and businesses in Androscoggin
County were closed. Opening day for deer hunting in Maine was on 1 0/28/23 and most of the gunshot calls
could be attributed to huniers sighting in their rifles

Many of the suspicious vehicle reports were resolved as unmarked law enforcement cars with out of state
plates conducting their own investigations and searches.

Various wooded areas and banks of rivers were searched again without success.

On 10/27/23 at 11;56 a.m. I was off duty and received a call from a
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, They found the person who had mistakenly
called 911 and cleared without incident.

On 10/27/23 at approximately 12:15 p.m. information was starting to leak that Card's .308 rifle, along
with at least one magazine, and some other personal effects were found in the Subaru a couple nights before.
This information gave rise to theory that Card was somewhere close to his vehicle. The fact that he had not
surfaced in the preceding days also gave rise to the suspicion that he might have committed suicide.

On 10/27/23 at 7:42 p.m. a mass text was sent out to available Deputies for help in conducting a line
search at the boat launch the following day. Deputies were asked to assemble at the Lewiston High School
command post the following morning at 7:30 a.m.

At 9:22 p.m. a mass text was sent to Sheriff Deputies that Robert Card had been found deceased. He had
apparently been found in a shipping container near his previous employer at Maine Recyeling and within a2 mile
of his abandoned Subaru Outback.

This ends my involvement with this case.
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On 10/25/23, at approximately 1919 hours, I received a text message from our dispatch center advising of an
active shooter at Schmengees in Lewiston. All available units were requested to respond. At approximately 1925
hours, I signed on and went to Schmengees.

I procaeded into the [N

began to
check the far side of the building where I found a closed door. I opened the door which led to a galley area,
connecting to a back storage room and the kitchen area. No viable victims were located.

While inside the structure I noted that the lights had been shut off. I recall someone asking to have the lights
turned on and someone said they weren't working. I had to use my flashlight to make my way around the inside

of the building.

I was asked by a Lewiston supervisor at that time to have all ASO units secure the building and not allow
anyone else in. I placed Deputy Chaloux at the door. I went back to my vehicle and grabbed some crime scene
tape. I taped off all entrances to the building. Lewiston units were working on taping off the perimeter.

I was then asked by Lewiston PD Spencer Simoneau to go around the parking lot and write down plate numbers
for Maine State Police. Lewiston PD Parker Simoneau assisted me. These plate numbers were turned over to
Detective Mike Chavez of the Maine State police.

Shortly afier, a State Trooper came running up to the scene reporting that a white sedan, similar to the one seen
leaving the scene, crashed at Exit 80 and units were being requested to respond. I responded to the area and was
advised on my arrival that the incident was not connected to the active shooter.

I arrived back at Schmengees to offer further assistance. While at the scene, dispatch advised there was a
reported active shooter at the Walmart Distribution Center in Lewiston. [ responded to that scene and was the
second unit to arrive. Deputy Jason Chaloux was at the employee entrance. As more units began to arrive,
dispatched advised they received another call that there was an active shooter in the building. Deputy Chaloux
entered the lobby and smashed the window out of a locked door so we could gain entry. 1 entered the building
with several other officers.

While in route to the Walmart DC the suspect was identified as Robert Card — He is known to be
operating a white 2013 Subaru Outback_ A photo of the suspect and his vehicle was

circulated to patrol.

Deputy Devon Bohacik and I split off from the group to clear a separate portion of the building. We determined
the space was too large and we needed more units. No active shots were being heard or had been heard at this
time. After acquiring more manpower, we began to systematically clear the distribution center. Upon entering
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the cold storage area, we encountered several employees in an office to our right. We asked them about the
shooter, and they described something similar to our initial call. They were ordered to shelter in place. We
continued clearing the building and encountered another group of employees. They were all patted down for
weapons, Nothing was found, They advised there was approximately 30 more employees on the third floor, We
asked them to call them all down to the first floor so they could be cleared out of the building. They came down
one by one and were also patted down for weapons.

We decided to evacuate them from the building at this point. We walked all the employees to the front entrance,
including the ones sheltered in the office. While on our way out, Sgt. Jon Guay advised they had reviewed the
video footage and there was no active shooter in the building, just some confusion and miss communication
amongst the callers.

We were ordered to go to the Colisee in Lewiston as a staging point. While at the Colisee we received word that
the suspect vehicle had been located at the Miller Park boat launch in Lisbon. ASO units decided to partner up
in vehicles and respond to the area. Deputy Chris Miller and I partnered up and proceeded to the Lisbon
Community School where the walking trail from that boat ramp comes out.

This concludes my involvement in this case.
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On October 25. 2023, at 7:11 PM all Androscoggin Deputies received a text from dispatch notifying us of an
active shooter situation in Lewiston. 1 was off duty and soon left my residence en route to assist, I heard
officers being told to head to Lewiston PD to stage for more information. Officers had just responded to an
additional active shooter call at Divinci's Eatery that turned out to be unfounded.

While heading to Lewiston PD, I heard Deputy Dylan Rider being sent to Sabattus Street to shut down the liquor
establishments, I was right in the area and assisted. We first went to the Blue Goose on Sabattus Street in
Lewiston. The doors were already locked but people were inside. We made contact with people inside and told
them to shut down for fear of an active shooter on the loose. They stated they heard the news and would be

leaving shortly.

Deputy Rider and I went up Sabattus Street to Little Joe's Bar, also in Lewiston. We got there and found no one
there. We went further up the road to Mixer's Lounge in Sabattus. We pulled into the parking lot and found the
business to be closed. We decided to head back into Lewiston. On our way we heard officers out on Stetson
Road in Lewiston with something suspicious. Deputy Rider and I followed a Lewiston PD officer off Russell
Street down College Street. We soon heard of an armed confrontation at the Walmart Distribution Center.

‘We all turned around and headed towards Walmart Distribution Center. I took up a permiter position on Alfred
Plourde Parkway by the intersection of Gendron Drive. I was soon met by a trooper MSP 812, Sgt. Tim
Kachnovich, and Oxford Deputy William Nelson.

We monitored the building and area until the distribution center was entered by police, cleared, and all
employees were allowed to exit. All officers soon cleared the area as the incident was not deeded to be related
to the active shooter incidents that were previously called in. Everyone cleared and headed to stage at Lewiston
PD. That directive was soon corrected to the Collisee parking lot as there were many police agencies in the area
and we needed a larger staging area for all the cruisers.

While we were there some calls were coming in over Lewiston PD's radio frequency of suspicious incidents,
men with a gun, and other stuff. Officers did respond and found them not related.

We later heard that Lisbon PD found a white Subaru car and confirmed the registration matched for the suspect
Robert Card's vehicle. The car was parked in the area of the walking path/boat launch by the entrance to the
Sabattus River. Many of the staged police responded to the arca.

I went as far as the bridge on Lisbon Road, by the intersection of River Road in Lisbon where I stopped. Before
the bridge on both sides of the road is a guardrail that showed fresh damage on both sides to include skids and
broken glass. 1 assumed the suspect vehicle became disabled and limped to the parking spot it was left in. I
contacted a manager of Crafts Auto Sales as they have an annex where a few of their cars are stored is right
across the road from where the suspect's vehicle was found. I got a list of all the vehicles that should be in that
annex lot, Isent the vehicle list to Lisbon Chief Ryan McGee just incase any were missing/stolen by the
suspect. Ialso notified him of the evidence of a crash scene just prior to the boat launch.

I backed up the road assuming someone shut down Lisbon Road at the intersection of Mill Street. I closed the
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road a bit closer to the scene as cars were still coming through. I parked on Lisbon Road at the entrance of Two
Rivers Dentistry. I remained there until I was relieved by Deputy Devon Bohaeik just prior to 1:30 AM. I went
off duty shortly after,

The next moming just after 5:15 AM I returned to the area now at the intersection of Lisbon Road and Village
Street/Webster Road shutting down Lisbon Road. Later in the day around noon time 1 was cleared of this duty
by Deputy Gary Moulton.

I began patrolling and later went to Cedar Pond Road in Durham and looked at the riverbanks with binoculars, I
went further up the road down private road James Place, which leads right across the Androscoggin River from
where the suspect vehicle was found. I went to the third residence on the road which is empty and under
construction. The house was empty. [ walked to the shore line and viewed the riverbanks and found nothing of
noting,

[ went to the area of the Durham/Lisbon bridge and viewed the dam and rocky area looking for any evidence and
didn't find any. I cleared the arca and soon went off duty. I had no further involvement in this case.
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On October 250, 2023, | was off duty at home when | received a call from a friend informing me of what he described as |

in “active shooter” at the bowling alley in the City of Lewiston. The friend who called me is identified a-

| have known - on a personal level for many years. | began to ask questions as to what was gaingon as |
could tell something was very wrong.

began to get my uniform on and turned on my radio when | began to hear radio traffic indicating this was in fact an
bctive shooter situation. | called into dispatch and informed them that | was ready to respond if a K9 team was needed.
Dispatcher Alec Douguette told me to start heading toward Schemgee’s Bar and Grill as they were starting to take reports
of another active shooter incident at that location.

got in my vehicle and responded to Schmengee’s. Upon my arrival | observed many Police Gfficers from various
agencies gathered in a circle in the parking lot. 1t appeared to me these units were developing a plan with the limited
information they had. | stood by for a second to listen when | realized the suspects whereabouts were unknown and
some had reported the male fleeing the scene into the woods. | feared there was a possibility we would be ambushed
bnd instructed a Lewiston Firefighter that was nearby to get me a ladder to the roof of the building. | looked around and
saw Sgt. Andrew Levesque and Officer Jeffrey Williams with the Lisbon Police Department on scene armed with rifles. |

At some point | overheard radio traffic indicating the shooter was at the WalMart Distribution Center which is
only a short distance away. Several Officers and | made the decision to respond to the WalMart DC as we were in close
nroximity to the location.

arrived at the Wal Mart DC locatian and observed Deputy Jason Chaloux and Chief Eric Baker at the front door, Deputy
haloux informed me the door was locked and they were unable to get anyone to let them in. |instructed him to break
he glass in the door so we could make entry, 1 made this decision given the information we had at the time, It was
reported there was an active shooter at this location, the doors were locked, and 1 could not see anyone inside the
huilding which indicated the employees were hiding. Numerous other Officers from various area agencies had arrived at
his point and we split up into small groups and began to clear sections of the building. It became apparent that this
report of an active shooter at this location was likely not accurate and we regrouped at the entrance a short time later.
Several groups of employees were escorted out of the building during this time. It was determined that this report was
ot accurate and we were instructed to assemble at the Collisee in Lewiston to receive further assighments.

responded to the Collisee with other Deputies from this agency. While at the Collisee it was decided that doubling up in

ruisers and providing assistance in the Lisbon area was where we would be the most useful. Sgt. Travis Lovering and |
partnered up in my cruiser and responded to the Lisbon area where the suspect vehicle had been located. Sgt. Lovering
and | patrolled the Lishon area for quite some time before taking up a position behind the Lisbon High School near the
Football field. 1am familiar with the area and knew the walking trial the suspect was thought to have traveled was in

lose proximity to this location.

| remained in the Lisban area assisting with traffic control on Rt. 136 until | was relieved by Cpl. Randy Williams. |
secured at my rasidence at approximately 0800 hours. | remained on standby until my regufar shift began on 10/27/23
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@1700. | reported to the Lisbon area for my regular shift and began assisting Lisbon PD with relieving some of their
units for periodic breaks while they were doing traffic control detalls in the area of the industrial park. This location was
the location Card was found deceased and the information was due to be released to the media very soon, [ was
cleared a short time later and had no further involvement.
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On 10/25/2023 1 was at home when [ received a 911 page at 1911. An active shooter was reported in Lewiston
and all units were required to respond in. I responded and was directed by dispatch to respond to Schemengees

Bar and Grille in Lewiston.

Upon my arrival I met up with Dep. James Phillips who stated that there was nothing more we could do. Dep
Phillips advised we were being directed to respond to LPD for further assignments, I walked back to my cruiser
and made my way back to LPD where Dep Phillips and I teamed up in one car.

We were assigned to make sure Fast Breaks bar and Gridiron were closed and all the patrons were escorted out
safely. While clearing Gridiron a call for an active shooter came in for the Walmart distribution center. Dep.
Phillips and | responded to the Alfond Plourde parkway side of the building. Upon arrival, we assisted in
clearing and moving occupants out of the building and into safety,

Dep. Phillips and I cleared Walmart and responded back to Gridiron where Dep. Phillips picked up his vehicle.
Both Units responded to the Colisee where we waited until we responded to the town of Lisbon. In Lisbon at
the bridge before the boat launch, I was doubled up with Cpl. Nadeau. While on the bridge a call came in about
a suspicious black pick up truck with flashers on. The vehicle was pulled to the side of the road and parked.
Cpl. Nadeau znd | made contact with the operator and his passenger.

I was cleared from the area and the call approximately midnight,
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Qctober 25, 2023, at approximately 1920 |, Deputy Christopher Miller was alerted of an active shooter situation
that was occurring in the ¢ity of Lewiston. | was told there was a scene at Schmengees and “Just in time
recreation”. | was also told there was a text to all members of patrol from the Androscoggin County Sheriff's
Office, asking for anyone to respond to both incidents. | decided to respond but needed to wait for someone to
come t¢ my house to watch my children.

At about 1930 | was able to leave my house and respond. | operated my vehicle with my lights and sirens
activated on Route 196 in the town of Lishon, headed towards Lewiston. My first destination was supposed to be
Schmengees, as that was the closest location to me. While | was approaching the intersection of Pleasant Street
and Lisbon Street, Corporal Morin advised aver the radio that there was a crash on Alfred Plourde Parkway, and
the Maine State Police advised it could potentially be the shooter’s vehicle. t quickly changed my destination to
the crash,

When | arrived at the crash, there was already muitiple police vehicles on scene. | heard over the radio that the
vehicle was not the shooter’s vehicle. | cleared the crash. 1 was then told that all available units were needed to
respond to the Lewiston Police Department and to await orders. While | was at the Lewiston Police Department, |
was shown a picture of the shooter. | was also shown a picture of the vehicle that the shooter was using (white
Subaru with a black front bumper). :

Once | was at the Lewiston Police Department, | was advised that there was an active shooter at the Walmart
Distribution facility. | responded to the location. | went to the front door with multiple other police officers. |
could hear no gun shots coming from the business. The front door to the facility was locked. The front door was
then broken by police, and we made entry. | walked through the front office area and made my way to the
warehouse part. | held that position while other police officers searched and cleared the building. Employees of
the business were taken to safety and brought to a secure part of the building. While units were clearing the
building it became evident that the shooter was not at this business, and that this was a false report. Once the
distribution center was cleared, we were told to go to the Lewiston Colisee to stage and wait for assignments.

| cleared the distribution center and started to make my way to the Colisee. While | was operating my vehicle on
Lishon Street, in the area of Golden Nozzle car wash | observed an individual walking on the sidewalk. The male
was wearing clothing that matched the description given of the shooter. The male also had a backpack on and
had a beard. | turned around and notified dispatch that | was cut with a pedestrian matching the description of
the shooter. | got out of my vehicle and had the male walk backwards towards me. The male instantly put his
hands in the air and told me that he was just trying to get back to where he was staying. Corporal Barrand a
Game warden arrived to assist. We searched the male for weapons, and nothing was found. | properly identified
the male using his State of Maine identification. | then put the male in my police vehicle and brought him to an
area motel where he was staying for the night. | then went to the Colisee.

While | was at the Colisee, | heard radio traffic from the Lisbon Police Department stating that they found a
vehicle that matched the description given for the vehicle belonging to the shooter. The vehicle was parked ina
parking lot at “Miller Park”. That park has a small parking lot and there is a2 paved walking path. The walking path
leaves fram bath ends of the parking lot, and the path goes two different directions. | am very famifiar with this
park as | have spent a lot of time there off duty. | awaited confirmation that the vehicle was the vehicle used in
the shootings. A short time later, it was confirmed that this was the vehicle that was used. it was not clear if the
vehicle was occupied or not,
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7.

Hours later, Corporal Morin and | cleared the school, and went mobile. We went to the intersection of
St. Ann Street and Webster Road for a short period. We then cleared there and went to a store at the
intersection of Lisbon Street and Ridge Road. We cleared there and went to the vicinity of where the

vehicle was found. | saw the vehicle in the parking lot, and it was parked in the back corner of the
parking lot.
Once | cleared, | went back to Lisbon, and secured for

the night at my residence. The time was around 0300.
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On October 25, 2023, 1 was off duty and advised via 9-1-1 page of an active shooter situation at two locations in
the City of Lewiston. I responded from my residence at approximately 1925 hours. Before arriving at
Schemengees Bar and Grill | was diverted to the Lewiston Police Department where I met with Sgt. Jon Guay
who advised we needed to start clearing out local bars.

I went to Fishbone Bar and Grill where I met a couple of off duty Lewiston Police Officer's and the bar was
cleared out. They advised me they were told of a subject walking along the train tracks behind the Just in Time
shooting site and they needed units over there. I responded with the LPD units and we were diverted from there
to the Walmart Distribution center, I arrived as the building was being cleared by other units and did not make

We were then advised to meet at the Colisee. After we were told the suspect's vehicle was located in Lisbon I
went to the area of the Lisbon Community School that was the end of a walking path from the suspects vehicle
with Sgt. Schroeder. At approximately 2345 hours I was cleared by Major Cornelio due to having to work patrol

the following day.

This concluded my involvement with this incident.




Androscoggin Sheriffs Office Page: 1
SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE FOR DEPUTY DEVON BOHACIK
Ref: 23AS0-1185-0F

Incident Report

INCIDENT NUMBER: 23AS80-1185-OF

CASE OFFICER: DEVON A. BOHACIK
OFFENSE: Assist Other Agency
DATE/TIME: 10/25/2023 1857hrs,
LOCATION: Spare Time Recreation

24 Mollison Way, Lewiston, ME. 04240

Narrative:

L. On 10/25/2023 at approximately 1857hrs, I, Deputy Devon A. Bohacik with the Androscoggin
County Sheriff’s Office was conducting a traffic stop on Turner Road in Auburn when I heard, via radio,
that there was an active shooter at Spare Time Recreation in Lewiston. I cleared from the traffic stop and
responded to Spare Time Recreation,

3. Once we were in the building, we came to 2 barricaded door.

5. Once back at Spare Time Recreation, I heard via radio that there was an active shooter at
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Schemengees Bar and Grille. I then proceeded to that location and upon arriving I observed several
civilians and law enforcement personnel. I assisted in putting up caution tape outside of the business and
clearing out the back seat of my cruiser so I could transport people to the hospital if need be. While doing
50, | then heard that DaVinci’s Eatery now had an active shooter incident. [ responded to this location and

learncd that there was no shooter at DaVinci’s.

6. On my way back to Schemengee’s Bar and Grille, I then heard via radio that the suspect vehicle
had crashed near Exit 80 in Lewiston but was then advised that the crash was unrelated to this incident, I
was then diverted to the Walmart Distribution Center in Lewiston with a reported sighting of the shooter. |
responded to the Walmart Distribution Center with other units from the Sheriff’s Office and cleared the
building, evacuation scveral employees. I then cleared from this location and was directed to go to the

Colisee in Lewiston to re-group.

7. Once at the Colisee, it was decided that we would pair up in a cruiser and go back out. I teamed up
with Sgt. Tim Kachnovich and proceeded to Lisbon, where now we had been advised that the suspect’s
vehicle had been located. 1 remained in Lisbon with Sgt. Kachnovich until we were requested to respond

to a warehouse off Rt. 196 for a suspicious condition. _

8. Once this task was completed, T brought Sgt. Kachnovich to Cpl. Randy Williams, who both were
going off-duty. I'then took Cpl. William’s position on Rt. 196 and conducted traffic control, not allowing any
vehicle by my location. Cpl. Darian Nadeau then arrived and assisted me with this task until we were relieved by
Cpl. Williams on 10/26/2023 at 0600hrs.
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On 10/25/2023 1 was not scheduled to work this specific day/night. At approximately 1911 hours, I received an
automated text message from my dispatch center reporting there was an active shooter in the City of Lewiston
and requesting any available units to respond to Sparetime and Schmengees. Prior to responding, I called into
dispatch to cenfirm that the text message was intended to be sent and factual. Dispatcher Letourneau confirmed
that there was a report of two active shooters with multiple casualties. I quickly dressed in full uniform and left
my residence in my fully marked patrol cruiser.

I expedited my travel with lights and sirens. While enroute, 1 asked dispatch if there was any available
descriptions that T could be on the lookout for with my travel time, I was advised there was no available
description and directed to respond to Schemengee's. With the limited information and radio traffic, I was under
the impression that the assailant was still at Schemengee's.

As 1 entered the City of Lewiston, I overheard radio traffic for all available units to respond to the command post
at Lewiston Police Department for assignments as the location of the assailant was unknown. It was at the
Lewiston Police Department I was showed a picture of the assailant, his vehicle and informed of his identity,
Robert Card, While there, 1 partered up with Livermore Falls Officer Maverick Real in my patrol cruiser. We
than quickly drove around and shut down local establishments; Blue Goose, Little Joe's and Mixers. The only
business with patrons was Blue Goose.

Throughout the evening, early morning hours, we would respond to a vary of calls which all would be
determined to not hold any value of leads for the assailant Card. I overheard radio traffic of Lisbon Police

Department finding Card’s vehicle at their local boat launch off from Route 196. | NG
I left the scene at their request. We

drove around the vicinity, looking for anyone matching the deseription.

*I did not respond to either scene of Schemengee's nor Just-In-Time.




Andz:csacggin Sheriffs Office Page: 1
SUPPLEMENTAL MNARRATIVE FOR DEPUTY GARY M MOULION
Ref: 23AS0-1185-0OF

On Qctober 25, 2023 at approximately 1900 hours I responded to a report of an active shooter incident in

Lewiston, After learning of the incident, I contacted Deputy Joe Tripp who was using my cruiser at that time. I
was at that time on scheduled days off. We coordinated for me to meet him at the Sheriff's Office, where I rode
with him to the initial command post at Lewiston PD.
Deputy Tripp and I arrived at

There were no incidents at the hospital,

There is nothing further.
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On 10/25/2023 1, Deputy Gregory Mailhot was off duty when I recieved a text message from dispatch that
they were requesting all available units for an active shooter situation in Lewiston. I originally responded in my
personal vehicle as I was on vacation and did not have my vehicle or rifle. I heard over the radio that Deputy
Noyes was responding so I called him and asked him if he was able to pick me up at the Minot Post Office on
Minot Avenue, he stated he would.

After being picked up by Deputy Noyes we responded to Lewiston to assist. We responded to several calls
for service about possible locations and suspicious conditions. Eventually a name was distributed to all units and
we were on the lookout for Robert Card. I learned from Deputy Noyes that Robert Card had been confirmed as
the shooter and we were to actively look for him and his vehicle. His vehicle was later located in Lisbon at the
out i, ve sy [
Shortly after being cleared from the boat launch we were cleared to go home by the Sheriff. As previously stated
I was on vacaiion during the time of this call so my body camera had not been charged and was not activated
during this incident.




Androscoggin Sheriffs Office Page: 1
SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE FOR DEPUTY JAMES PHILLIPS
Ref: 23AS0-1185-0OF

On 10/25/23 at approximately 7:21 pm, I Deputy James P. Phillips received notification from the Androscoggin
County Communications Center of an active shooter in the city of Lewiston. I received multiple notifications of
an active shooter at Spare time Recreation and Schmengee's. I was off duty at my residence. Having received the
notifications, I suited up and headed out.

At 7:24 pm, I signed 10-8 (in route). Dispatch advised to respond to Schmengee's in Lewiston as they need units
at that location. I activated my emergency lights and siren,

At approximately 7:35 pm, I arrived in the area of Schmengee's. Due to the number of emergency vehicles in the
area, I had to park down the road approximately 800 feet. I exited my vehicle and I secured and charged my long

rifle. I was requested to make my way to the parking lot of Schmengee's _

Once at the parking lot, I made contact with Deputy Bohacik, Deputy Tripp, Cpl. Morin, Cpl. Nadeau, and Sgt.
Guay. Shortly after arriving, Sgt. Guay advised that we were going to respond to the Lewiston Police
Department and reorganize our efforts as needed. Sgt. Brown of the Lewiston Police Department asked that we
split up and start responding to local dining establishments and bars to have them shut down for the night and to

safely return to their residences.

We responded to the Lewiston Police Department. While staged at this location, Deputy Westleigh and I joined
forces, and we took her vehicle #127. We responded to Fast Breaks and the Gridiron Restaurant and Pub. Both
locations had already been notified to close for the evening and to return to their residences.

At this time, we cleared, and we started making our way back to the Lewiston Police Department, While in
route, we received notices of a reported active shooter at the Wal-Mart Distribution Center on Alfred Plourde

Parkway in Lewiston. We immediately responded to that location,

Upon arrival to the Walmart Distribution Center, we made our way to the main entrance, Once at the main
entrance, we eniered the building. Dep. Westleigh and I stayed at the main entrance, and we secured all
employees thet made their way safely to us.

Once the building was cleared, we responde

ack to the Lewiston Police Department.

At this time, we returned to the Lewiston Police Department. We were asked to respond to the parking lot of the
Lewiston Colisee, as they are establishing a staging point. T took my vehicle #113 to the Colisee. Once at the
Colisee all Androscoggin County units met up, along with several others from smaller departments. We received

notification from our command staff that the suspect has been identified. The suspect being a Robert Card
and he is operating a white 2013 Subaru Outback, with a black front bumper,

While at the Colisee, we heard the Lisbon Police Department report that they had located the suspects’ vehicle at
the boat launch on Frost Hill Avenue and Lisbon Street.

Upon arrival te the town of Lisbon, we patrolled the northwest portion of the town as a walking path goes north
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from the scene of the suspects’ vehicle. We also patrolled the northeast section of the town. We then gathered
with other units at the intersection of Ridge Road and Frost Hill Avenue. We staged in this area for the time

being.

At approximately 11:24 pm, I received a call from Major Cornelio. He asked that I secure for the evening as I
have to report for my normal shift tomorrow morning at 5 am. I supplied Officer Chaine with a ride back to his
vehicle at the Lewiston Colisee. I then returned to my residence, and I signed off.

Nothing follows.
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| | Deputy Jason was working for the Androscoggin County Sheriff's Office, | was in a Sheriff’s Office polo with my bullet
| proof vest over that and driving an unmarked cruiser vehicle.

At 1911 on 10/25/23 | was at my residence when | received a 911 page text message stating “units required for road; 2
active shooter situations in Lewiston; any available units respond; Sparetime and Schemengees”. At this time | was not
sure if this was a hoaxed text or if it was real and | attempted to call the Androscoggin County Communication’s Center.

| The phone just kept ringing and ringing | then hung up the phone and called Director Martin Fournier direct on his cell

| phone. | asked him “is this was real?” He replied yes and respond immediately! { then grabbed my Androscoggin
County Polo put it on and put on my vest over that and grabbed my rifle and left the house. When | signed 10-8 (in
service) | was informed to respond to Schemengees Bar & Grill at 551 Lincoln St Lewiston. As|turned onto Lincoln
Street | noticed many police cars, fire engines, and various other emergency vehicles all with lights on all down Lincoln
Street, | arrived on scene at about 1925,

| had to stop about 200 feet from the building due to all the emergency vehicles. | exited my vehicle with my rifle and
proceeded to run down to the entrance of the building. At this time | saw people running all over the place to include in

and out of the building. | asked who was in charge and got no answer. _
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At this time we had the male explain to us agsin were
he turned off the power he then told us that he could show us. | believe it was Carporal Jeremy Somma from Lewiston
Police Department who asked if he was the owner or worker of Schemengees. He stated that he was not and only a
customer who was there when the shooting started and that he hide in that closet and noticed the power box and cut
the power to the building, He explained where it was one more time to Corporal Somma and | and we then went back
into the building to look for the power switch. This time we were able to locate the closet that was off of the private
dining area. Tke power was turned back on and we exited the building. When 1 got back to the door Corporal Somma
continued down the stairs and | stoad by Corporal Kavanagh. | noticed at this time that the male was now gone. Afew
moments later a male that was at the rear of the building in the tree line yelled out to turn the power back off. | do not
know who this male is or wha he worked for but | went back into the building and turned the power back off once again
and exited the building, A few minutes went by and | was standing back next to Corporal Kavanagh and a dispatch call
came in that there was an active shooter at Davinci’s restaurant which is only down the road from our location. |
noticed numerous police vehicles take off in that direction and | decided to stay back at this time. We aiso heard that
there was also State Police in the area as well and they are responding. Moments later another call came in from
dispatch that there is an active shooter at the Wal-Mart Distribution Center which is also right up the road from us. At
this time 1 noticed only 1 police vehicle responding to that location. | asked Corporal Kavanagh if he was all set and that
1 would respond to that location as we only saw one police vehicle responding. Corporal Kavanagh stated go and I'm
good here. | then ran to my vehicle and followed the other cruiser up Lincoln Street, | did not noticed what agency it
was from but it continued on to the right on River Road. |took a left onto Goddard Road and followed that to Alfred
Plourde Parkway where | took a right and went into the employee’s entrance of the Wal-Mart Distribution Center.

-I could see down the hallway and observed no movement or anyone in the area. | radioed into the

Androscoggin County Communications that | was the only person at this location and that I'll be waiting for back up. 1
held this position for a few moments and Sergeant Jon Guay and Corporal Morin arrived to back me up. We went
through the first set of sliding glass doors as they opened and on the second set of sliding glass doors they were locked
and did not open. I retrieved an ASP that | had in my vehicle and was instructed by Corporal Morin to break the door to
gain entry, At this time | hit the door about three times and the door window smashed. | then cleaned the glass off of
the frame 50 no one would cut themselves as they entered the building. 1 was first into the building followed by Chief
Michael Baker of Sabattus Police Department.

A short while later we started receiving pictures of the
active shooter from Just in Time bowling alley. This male was later identified as Robert Card- As employees
were being discovered and coming out of there hiding place | patted them down for weapons and to be sure they were
not the suspect we were looking for. | was at the Wal-Mart Distribution Center for about an hour before Sergeant Guay
informed me to go to the Colisee in Lewiston on Birch Street for a meeting place and to get our next assignment. | then
drove the Colisee and met up with other Deputies from the Androscoggin County Sheriff's Office.

At the Colisee | received a phone call from
I - this time Robert was all over social media and the news as he was an active shooter and
wanted.

B | stated that | would pass the information on up the proper channe!s.—
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| went back where other

Deputles were standing and it was decided that we would pair up in vehicles and go drive around the city looking for the
suspect’s vehicle, | teamed up with Deputy Robert Murphy In his vehicle and we exited the Colisee. A few minutes after
we left the parking lot we got alerted that the suspect vehicle was located at the Lisbon Falls boat faunch on Route 196.
]

I - o<t Card did not appear to be in the vehicle. A short while later Lisbon
Communications was getting numerous calls of suspicious persons/vehicles all over the area where the vehicle was
located. Deputy Murphy and | were dispatched to Springworks Farm for a person in the building. Springworks Farm is
only about a mile from where the suspect vehicle was located. Deputy Murphy and | arrived on scene and secured the
front of the bullding. The owner of the building came over and spoke to Deputy Murphy as | walked a little further
down to secure the back side of the building as well. | later learned that the owner heard that there was a mass
shooting in Lewiston and that the suspect vehicle was located a short distance away, He stated that he opened all the
doors in the building so if a door shut he would know someone was in it as he is the only one working. While he was
working he heard a door slam and noticed that the bathroom door was now shut. He stated that he then call Lisbon
Dispatch and exited the building. A few minutes later Chief Ryan Mcgee arrived on scene as well as Sergeant Timothy
Kachnovich and Deputy Devon Bohacik.

| returned to my vehicle that was narked at the Colisee and informed to help Lewiston Police Department clear up some
pending calls they had. | had r= other interaction involving this case on this day.

End of Report
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On 10/25/23, at approximately 1857 hours, I, Deputy Tripp was on Lisbon St in Lewiston when [ heard
Lewiston PD get dispatched to 24 Mollison Way (Spare Time Recreation Bowling Alley) for a report of an
active shooter. | activated my blue emergency lights and started to the location. Dispatch was notified by Cpl,
Nadeau who had also heard the radio traffic from Lewiston. As I was on my way to the location, there were two
Lewiston PD units in front of me.

Once out on scene, I deployed my rifle, met with Officer Parker Simoneau of Lewiston PD at the entrance to the
bowling alley.

Once we got to the corner of the building, we saw other Lewiston PD units
approaching from the opposite side of the building, also heading toward the main entrance,

Other Lewiston PD units arrived on scene

Once outside, we cleared the vehicles in the parking lot. As I was on the last row of vehicles, I heard over the
radio that there was another active shooter at Schmengee's on Lincoln St. I told the other Lewiston Units that I
was heading to Schmengee's. I ran back out to my cruiser and drove to the area,

I made contact with the driver and told him
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I moved my cruiser to the entrance to the plant. Officer Pealatere stopped by my cruiser. I told him what |
learned and that we were going to clear the area and work our way back up to Schmengee's. Once the area was |
cleared, we made our way into the parking lot of Schmengee's. I started clearing vehicles, There were several
people out in the parking lot near vehicles. Some on their phones, others talking to each other, There was one
at was backed out of a parking space with nobody inside it. It was still running, and I was not able
to find a key or key fob inside it. I turned the car off and continued searching the vehicles in the

made my way back to the road where [ met with other Deputies where it was
decided that we were going to go back to Lewiston PD for further assignments,

I made contact with Dep. Moulton who said that he was on his way in, but his rifle was in the cruiser I was
driving. I told him to go to the Sheriff's Office and that I would meet him there. I informed Sgt. Guay of this,
and he told me to meet him at Lewiston PD after.

I picked up Dep. Moulton and we made our way back to Lewiston PD wh

Shortly after,.I was informed that the male had

At approximately 0210 hours, I was notified that Dep. Moulton and I could clear—rctum to
Lewiston PD.

This incident was captured via cruiser 121 camera and my body worn camera.

*#*+This ends my involvement in this case®*¥*
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On 10/25/2023 at approximately 1911hrs, | received a text message on my cell phone from the Sheriff’s Office. It was an
automated message, “units required for road; 2 active shooter situations in Lewiston”. 1 got dressed into my
department uriform and immediately responded. Just after letting dispatch know, | was enroute, Deputy Gregory
Mallhot called me on my cell phone. He advised that he was on vacation and therefor didn’t have his cruiser, so asked if
I could pick him up on my way to the active shooter incident. | picked Deputy Mailhot up in Minot moments after
speaking with him on the phone.

The active shooter incidents took place at Just in Time Bowley Alley and Schmengees’ Pool Hall. As Deputy Maithot and |
responded, dispatch had advised any available units to respond to Schmengees’, as the scene had been secured at the
bowling alley.

While responding to Schmengees’, dispatch reported that anyone not currently at a scene, respond to the Stetson Rd. in
Lewiston, for a possible sighting of the shooter. | immediately responded to the Stetson Rd. in Lewiston, where | met
with a group of other officers, Before beginning any search,
dispatch then reported that they were taking reports that the active shooter was now in the Walmart Distribution
Center in Lewiston. Deputy Mailhot and |, along with several other officers, left the Stetson Rd. and responded to the
Wal-Mart distribution center on Alfred A. Plourde Pkwy, in Lewiston,

Upon arrival, there was already a team of officers that had entered the distribution center to clear it. While speaking
with other officers outside the distribution center, another repart came in that there could be another active shooter at
10 Wakefield Street in Lewliston. Deputy Mailhot and | began to respond to that scene as the report came in. Before we
could arrive at Wakefield Street, another officer had cleared the area advising it was in fact not another scene.

By this time, enough of the public was aware of the active shooter, and now other reports were coming in of possible
suspects and locations.

Deputy Mailhot and | responded to the Olive Garden restaurant in Auburn, after dispatch had reported the restaurant
had called in a man outside with a bullet proof vest on. We arrived on scene and had noted an Auburn Police car just
leaving the area. We did not observe anyone outside of the restaurant at that time.

Deputy Mailhot and | started to head toward the Lewiston Police Department to make contact with the command post
and get further assignments. While on the way to the command post, dispatch put out that the shooter had been
identified as Robert Card and added that he was possibly aperating a white Subaru Outback station wagon with a
different colored front bumper.
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Once | arrived at the command post, | met with Major Cornelio who asked me to identify Card’s vehicle from securi

camera footage

Shortly after providing information to the Maine State Palice, Sheriff Eric Samson, Deputy Mailhot, and | all left the
command post in my cruiser.

We checked Card’s most recent employer’s parking lot to see if we could locate his vehicle there. The vehicle was not in
the parking lot. As soon as we left the parking lot, dispatch reported that they were receiving a call that someone was
live streaming the active shooter at the Rusty Lantern Convenience store in Sabattus. We immediately began
responding to the store with lights and siren activated, Before being able to get to the stare, other officers had cleared
the area, and advised there was not active shooter event at that iocation.

Immediately after discontinuing the response to the Rusty Lantern store, dispatch advised that Card’s vehicle had been
located at the boat launch at the intersection of Rt. 196 and Frost Hill Ave. in Lisbon. || NG

| went home at 0200hrs per the direction of our representative at the command post and was available for call out from
there.

Deputy Matthew Noyes
Androscoggin County S.0.
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Androscoggin County Sheriff’s Office

Narrative

Incident Number: 23AS80-1185-0F

Date of Report: 10/25/2023
Reported by: Deputy Tyler F. Ham
Synopsis:

On 10/25/2023 at approximately 1911hrs I received a page from Dispatch directing me to respond to Lewiston for
the report of an active shooter. I learned that there were two mass shootings. One was at Just in Time Recreation
and Schmengees Bar and Grill. I was told that there were multiple casualties and the suspect had not been

gpprehended.
Details:
1. On 10/25/2023 at approximately 1911hrs I was contacted by Disputch via a page to my cellphone

informing me on an active shooter incident in Lewiston. I was| il at 2 local restaurant with my
family and had to return home to get my cruiser and gear.

2. Isigned on at approximately 1930hrs and was told by dispatch to report to Schmengees Bar and Grill.

3. Just prior to arriving at Schmengees I was told that all units could clear that location, the resources on
scene were adequate. I was told to return to the Lewiston Police Department to re-group and come up
with a plan. Prior, to returning to the Lewiston Police Department, at approximately 1945hrs, dispatch
notified units about a car crash at exit 80 on Alfred A. Plourde Parkway.

4. It was initially reported that the crash near exit 80 was the suspect vehicle from the shootings
howsver, just as [ arrived on scene, I learned that the crash was unrelated,

5. AsTIbegan to return to the Lewiston Police Department, at approximately 1950hrs, I was told by
dispetch that there was report of another active shooter at DaVinci’s Eatery on Mill Street in Lewiston.

6. Iarrived on scene at DaVinci’s Eatery along with several Auburn Police Department units and
Trooper Jason Wing, It did not appear that there was any disturbance at DaVinci’s Eatery however, it
was decided that we would clear the building to confirm that there was no threat
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suspicious.

7. Afler confirming there was no threat at DaVinei’s Eatery, I cleared the scene and returned to the
Lewiston Police Department. Shortly afier arriving at the Lewiston Police Department, at

approximately 2000krs, I was dispatehed to Stetson Road in Lewiston to assistjj| | | | N EEENENEGEGE

8. Tarrived at the Animal Hospital on Stetson Road and just as I prepared to deploy, I was informed that
therc was a possible active shooter at the Wal-Mart Distribution Center on Alfred A. Plourde Parkway
in Lewiston.

9. At approximately 2010hrs, I responded to the area of Goddard Road with several other officers and set
up near Northeast Charter. I assisted in clearing the parking lot and all the unlocked busses. After
clearing the busses, myself and the team I was with moved up to the rear entry of the Wal-Mart
Distribution Center. I maintained a position on the rear of the building until I learned that the entry
team had made entry and located no threat.

10. Once no threat was located at the Wal-Mart Distribution Center, I returned to the Lewiston Police
Department and then shortly thereafter I was sent to the Colisee on Birch Street in Lewiston to await
further instructions. At this time, I paired up with Detective Zach Provost of the Lewiston Police

Department. Detective Provost and I deployed from the Colisee. At this time, I learned that the suspect

in the shootings was Robert Card ||| Il 21< the vehicle we were looking for was his 2013

Sub

11. At approximately 2200hrs, I was told that Robert’s vehicle had been located in the parking lot of the

Papermill Trail directly off of Lisbon Street (Rt. 196). | I

12, Once I was relieved, I was asked to hold a position o